
Notice of Meeting

Standing Advisory Council 
on Religious Education
Tuesday 25th February 2020 at 4.15pm
in Committee Room  Council Offices  
Market Street  Newbury

For further information about this Agenda, or to inspect any background documents 
referred to in Part I reports, please contact Janet Giddings on 01635 519644
e-mail: janet.giddings@westberks.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



Agenda - Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education to be held on Tuesday, 25 
February 2020 (continued)

To: Group A - Other Faiths Members:
Mobasshir Mushtaq (Muslim), Rabbi Zvi Solomons (Jewish) and Revd David Taylor 
(Thatcham Baptist Church)
Group B – Church of England Members:
Val Bolan, Maria Pratico, Robin Sharples and Mary Stagg
Group C – Teaching Association Members:
Bernard Eggleton (NASUWT) and Clare Hawkins (NASUWT)
Group D – WBC Councillors:
Councillor Peter Argyle, Councillor Billy Drummond (WBC), Councillor Tony Linden and 
Councillor David Marsh
LA Advisors:
Rachel Manley, David Rees
Guests:
Donna Fox and Reading University Undergraduates

Agenda
Page No.

1   Welcome, Introductions and Apologies
We welcome as our guests Donna Fox, Principal Adviser for School 
Improvement at WBC, and some RE undergraduate students from 
Reading University.

2   Discussion with Donna Fox
2.1 The role of Principal Adviser for School Improvement
2.2 Working together to promote RE in schools

3   Minutes
To sign and approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of 
SACRE held on 12th November 2019.

4   Matters arising from the Minutes

5   Actions (not covered elsewhere)
5.1 Progress on newsletter – Clare Hawkins, David Rees

6   Membership



Agenda - Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education to be held on Tuesday, 25 
February 2020 (continued)

6.1 Rachel Manley, Maria Pratico and Zvi Solomons have now been 
formally appointed 

7   Schools
7.1 West Berks RE exam results – Janet Giddings
7.2 Primary Schools/Network – David Rees
7.3 Secondary Schools/Network – David Taylor

8   2020-21 Action Plan and Budget - David Rees 5 - 10

9   Berkshire Hub - David Taylor
9.1 Real People, Real Faith Video Project update
9.2 SACRE Conference at Easthampstead Park, Thu 2 July, 6pm-9pm

10   Questions from Students - Clare Hawkins

11   Any Other Business

12   Date of Next Meeting
Tues 19 May 2020, 4.15pm at Yattendon Primary School, with 
Joni McAuliffe (Christian Outreach in Newbury Schools)

Sarah Clarke
Head of Legal and Strategic Support



This page is intentionally left blank



WEST BERKSHIRE
STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL ON RELIGIOUS EDUCATION

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON
TUESDAY, 12 NOVEMBER 2019

VENUE: THATCHAM BAPTIST CHURCH  WHEELERS GREEN WAY  THATCHAM  
RG19 4YF

Present: 
Group A – Other Faiths Members
Revd David Taylor (Thatcham Baptist Church)
Group B – Church of England Members
Mrs Val Bolan (Church of England) and Mrs Mary Stagg (Church of England)
Group C – Teaching Association Members
Bernard Eggleton (NASUWT) and Clare Hawkins (NASUWT)
Group D – WBC Councillors
Councillor Billy Drummond (WBC), Councillor Tony Linden (WBC), Councillor David Marsh 
(WBC) 
Professional Adviser
David Rees
Guests:
Rachel Manley, Maria Pratico and Rabbi Zvi Solomons

Also Present: Janet Giddings (Appeals Officer)

Apologies for inability to attend the meeting: Councillor Peter Argyle (WBC), Mobasshir 
Mushtaq (Muslim) and Robin Sharples (Church of England)

1 Welcome, Introductions and Apologies
David Taylor welcomed everyone to the meeting and confirmed apologies were received 
from:  Cllr Peter Argyle, Mobasshir Mushtaq and Robin Sharples.

2 Membership
2.1 Rabbi Zvi Solomons (Group A)
SACRE Members discussed and agreed with Rabbi Zvi Solomons that he should join WB 
SACRE to represent the Jewish faith.  At the meeting on 6 March 2019, Rachel Manley 
and Maria Pratico were invited to join WB SACRE.  An Individual Decision will be signed 
by Dominic Boeck, Portfolio Holder for Children, Education and Young People at West 
Berkshire Council in December 2019 to formally appoint Rachel Manley, Maria Pratico 
and Rabbi Zvi Solomons as members of WB SACRE.

3 Election of Chair and Vice Chair for Academic Year 2019/20
3.1  Election of Chair for Academic Year 2019/20
Councillor Billy Drummond nominated David Taylor as Chair.  This was seconded by Val 
Bolan.  David Taylor accepted the role.

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL ON RELIGIOUS EDUCATION - 12 NOVEMBER 2019 - 
MINUTES

3.2  Election of Vice Chair for Academic Year 2019/20
Councillor Billy Drummond nominated Bernard Eggleton as Vice Chair.  This was 
seconded by Val Bolan.  Bernard Eggleton accepted the role.

4 Presentation from Sue Ball on Collective Worship
Sue Ball is the RE and Collective Worship and PSHE/British Values Link Governor at 
Thatcham Park Primary School.  Members were shown the attached powerpoint 
presentation on Collective Worship.  Sue explained that Collective Worship happens 
daily in schools as part of the school day and is distinct from assemblies.  For that 
reason, Ofsted are likely to observe Collective Worship during their inspections.
Participation from pupils is encouraged and the slide “Call to Worship” was co-created by 
Year 5 and 6 pupils.
Small groups from local faith primary schools are invited to attend regular sessions at 
Bucklebury Church to explore RE using hands-on techniques including music, drama, 
writing and ‘laying the table’.  It may be possible for these sessions to be expanded to 
invite children from community schools to attend. 
Sue advised that schools should have a Collective Worship Policy which would give clear 
expectations, particularly from visitors.  
Penny Judge from Thatcham Park Primary School introduced a learning tool the school 
used to teach RE; a class basket.  A new theme each term, currently courage, is 
introduced in assembly on a Monday, the local vicar discusses the theme on a Tuesday, 
pupils are then given time to reflect on and express their own views.  Pupils store items in 
the basket from home that are relevant to the theme which can be shared with the class.  
Reverend Mark Bennet is keen for  class baskets to be funded in more schools.  
David Taylor asked Members if they had any questions for Sue Ball and/or Penny Judge.  
Maria Pratico asked if the children knew what they were doing.  Penny said at this stage 
they were planting seeds, getting them to think.  It was a safe space to share ideas and 
not be ridiculed.  She added that teachers often found it difficult to introduce RE topics so 
it helped that this was a pupil-led activity.
David Taylor thanked Sue Ball and Penny Judge for their presentation.  A copy of the 
presentation and the handouts distributed at the meeting are attached for information.

5 Minutes
The Minutes of the meetings held on 6 March 2019 and 11 June 2019 were approved as 
a true and correct record and signed by the Chairman.

6 Actions (not covered elsewhere)
6.1 Examples of SACRE newsletters
David Taylor showed Members a sample newsletter from Bracknell Forest Council.  Anne 
Andrews, Oxford Diocese, was happy for forward a copy to WB SACRE for editing before 
publication.
Rachel Manley advised the Oxford Diocese Board of Education produced a similar 
newsletter that was distributed to local schools.  
Clare Hawkins and David Rees volunteered to edit the newsletter to include content 
relevant to West Berkshire.  Clare advised she would be attending a SACRE meeting at 
Bracknell Forest Council on 13 November 2019 where she could find out when the 
newsletter would be available for editing, and email those dates to Janet Giddings.

Page 6



STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL ON RELIGIOUS EDUCATION - 12 NOVEMBER 2019 - 
MINUTES

6.2 RE Undergraduates
Clare Hawkins offered to introduce 5 RE undergraduates to WB SACRE to enrich their 
studies.  David Taylor confirmed the next meeting would take place on 25 February 2020 
at the Council Offices in Market Street.  Clare said she would invite them to attend.

7 Matters arising from the Minutes
David Taylor had met Donna Fox, Principal Adviser for School Improvement at West 
Berkshire Council.  They agreed WB SACRE should have a presence on the education 
portal, managed by Vicky Pearce.
David Taylor raised concerns he and Members of SACRE had regarding the non-
existence of RE at Park House School.  Donna Fox offered to discuss this with the 
Headteacher, Derek Peaple, as they had a good working relationship.  Councillor Tony 
Linden was happy with this progress as RE is a legislative requirement.  Councillor David 
Marsh said Park House School was in his Ward and so offered to make an informal visit 
to the school where he would casually mention his involvement with SACRE and enquire 
as to the current provision of RE.  Clare Hawkins said she believed the Headteacher 
genuinely felt RE was covered in the subject Character and Values. 

8 Schools
8.1 West Berks RE exam results
Exam results are not published by subject.  Janet Giddings will contact secondary 
schools in West Berkshire to request this information.
8.2 Primary Schools/Network – David Rees
David Rees offered to forward to Members the Minutes of the Primary School Network 
Meeting held on 8 October 2019.  Coincidentally it was arranged on the same day as 
another RE meeting which was subsequently cancelled.  
Members discussed the need for a central online resource for RE teachers.  
David Taylor expressed concern that, although they were welcome, meetings held at 
Thatcham Baptist Church only attracted attendees from schools in the vicinity.  
8.3 Secondary Schools/Network – David Taylor/David Rees
A discussion took place about the provision of RE in schools.  David Taylor recently 
visited Trinity School who had recruited 2 new members of staff.  RE was offered as an 
option which meant it wasn’t compulsory in Years 10, 11 and 6th Form.  A GCSE option 
was available. Clare Hawkins explained that Progress 8 was a secondary school 
accountability measurement of a pupil’s progress from Year 6 SATs to Year 11 GCSEs.  
Short courses were not included in Progress 8 scores which could influence a school’s 
decision to include them in the curriculum.  David Rees advised the short courses fulfilled 
the statutory requirement to offer RE.
The Secondary School Network Meeting was held on October 2019 at St Bartholomew’s 
School, Newbury, with 3 attendees. Those present discussed RE GCSE provision, mixed 
GCSE results and shared experiences.  It was felt that children needed to know why they 
were studying RE.

9 Annual Report - David Taylor
David Taylor presented the Annual SACRE Report 2018-2019.  Val Bolan thought the 
Crossing the Bridges Directory had been put on hold, as discussed at the SACRE 

Page 7



STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL ON RELIGIOUS EDUCATION - 12 NOVEMBER 2019 - 
MINUTES

meeting in June 2019.  David agreed to remove the reference to Val from the text.  David 
Rees added that Crossing the Bridges was 3 years old and that someone needed to take 
the lead to check contact details and maintain a master copy.  Templates were still 
available for faiths to complete but needed updated once submitted.
Bernard Eggleton said it was important to keep an attendance list for each meeting to 
ensure compliance with SACRE membership rules.  
Val Bolan thanked David Taylor for the report.
Action: Janet Giddings to keep a record of attendance for SACRE meetings.

10 2019-20 Budget and Action Plan Update
David Rees presented the Action Plan, explaining the focus was on:
B. Core Business:  Religious Education, 
4. Contact primary schools who do not attend networks, to arrange visits by SACRE 
members.  
David said it was important to let schools know what support was available.
5. Continue to work with secondary schools not yet complying with the law, especially 
Park House School
David Rees acknowledged the work started by David Taylor commenting he had been 
very proactive.
Online resources were available via NASACRE.

11 Hub
21.2 Real People, Real Faith Video Project update – David Taylor/David Rees
David Taylor advised members the recent Westhill Bid was successful enabling a 
professionally filmed video project to proceed. Children would have the opportunity to ask 
faith leaders questions from the syllabus.  The project would be launched in July 2020.  
The bid was highlighted in the recent NASACRE Briefing No. 23.

12 Next Meeting Dates to Agree
22.1 Tuesday 25 February 2020, 4.15pm, West Berkshire Council’s Offices
Agreed by Members; venue confirmed as the Committee Room, Ground Floor.
22.2 Tuesday 12 or 19 May 2020, 4.15pm at a primary school?
The preferred date was 19 May 2020.  Rachel Manley offered to host the meeting at 
Yattendon Primary School, RG18 0UR.

13 Any Other Business
Rabbi Zvi Solomons asked if there were plans to commemorate Holocaust Memorial Day 
on 25 January 2020.  Clare Hawkins said she was aware of school visits planned to the 
newly built Holocaust Memorial Centre in London.
Action:  Janet Giddings to advise Members of local arrangements.

Page 8



West Berkshire Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education: 2020

1. Our Purpose is to advise West Berkshire Council on: 
a) Collective Worship 
b) Religious Education, in accordance with the locally agreed syllabus

2. How do we achieve this?

a) We publish and launch the agreed syllabus every 5 years.  
We did this in 2018.
 

b) We encourage the development of material to support the implementation of the syllabus.  
This is ongoing, and our Adviser David Rees is involved.  

c) We support the provision of termly network meetings for RE coordinators in primary schools
David Rees runs these.  Also, either he or David Taylor attends the existing secondary network.

d) We produce a termly newsletter for schools
Clare Nolan and David Rees are working on this

e) We provide a copy of the Non-statutory guidance on RE published by the Qualifications and Curriculum 
Authority and the DfE to each school in West Berkshire.
Schools have copies of this.

f) We receive presentations from teachers and members of faith communities on issues related to RE 
and collective worship.
Recent presentations have included: The needs of Muslim pupils taking exams during Ramadan; 
RS at Theale Green School; Resources for collective worship in primary schools. 

g) We send our Chairman to the Pan Berkshire Hub, a meeting of the six Berkshire SACRE Chairs run by 
Anne Andrews, RE Adviser at the Oxford Diocesan Board of Education
David Taylor attends this and reports back

h) Through the Pan Berkshire Hub, we promote the “Crossing the Bridges” project which aims to link 
schools and faith communities
Val Bolan has been working on this

i) Through the Pan Berkshire Hub, we provide an annual conference for all interested parties
This is planned for 2 July 2020 at Easthampstead Park

j) We publish an annual report of our work
David Taylor does this

3. To help us achieve our goals, West Berkshire Council resources us with:

a) An annual budget
In 2019-20 this was £4,840, the same as the previous year. 

b) The services of a Clerk
Janet Giddings is our valued Clerk

c) An Adviser to act as a strong link between us and the LA.
Rachel Manley serves in this capacity.

Page 9

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



West Berkshire SACRE action plan April 2020-March 2021
Aim Actions Timescales People Responsible Summer 2020 Autumn 2020 Spring 2021

1. Fill membership 
vacancies

End of July 2020 SACRE Chair
SACRE Clerk

2. SACRE members attend 
termly SACRE meetings (3 
per year) and, when 
possible, teacher termly 
network meetings and 
training events e.g. 
annual SACRE conference

Termly SACRE 
meetings: 
Summer 2020
Autumn 2020
Spring 2021

Termly teacher 
network meetings 

SACRE Chair/SACRE 
Adviser
SACRE members 
SACRE Clerk

3. Produce annual SACRE 
Report

Autumn Term 2020 SACRE Chair and clerk Bring draft to 
November 
2020 meeting

Presented at 
March mtg and to 
Councillors on 
Date tbc

4. Review the action plan at 
each meeting and update 
for next year

At each SACRE 
meeting

SACRE Adviser and 
SACRE Chair

Review at each 
meeting

Review at each 
meeting

Review at each 
meeting

A. CORE BUSINESS

To be a supportive 
and proactive 
SACRE enjoying full 
and well-informed 
membership

5. ~Subscribe to NASACRE

~Representation at 
annual NASACRE 
conference, NASACRE 
AGM

Ongoing NASACRE 
membership £105 
currently
SACRE Adviser to 
organise with other 
Berkshire RE advisers 
(To be confirmed for 
20-21 year)

Attendance at 
Summer 2020 
AGM?

B. To support 1. Provide a termly primary Summer term 2020 Report to 

P
age 11



teachers of RE 
to continually 
improve RE 
learning in their 
schools and

C. To support the 
implementation 
of the revised 
Berkshire 
Agreed Syllabus 
for RE

RE network meeting for 
West Berkshire teachers, 
4-5.30 SACRE members 
welcome

2. Support secondary 
network

Selected SACRE members to 
attend the hub and feedback 
to SACRE

TBA
Autumn term 2020 
TBA
Spring term 2021 
TBA

Summer term 2020 
TBA
Autumn term 2020 
TBA
Spring term 2021 
TBA

ongoing

Led by Adviser

Adviser attends 2 
meetings SACRE chair 
attends 1 meeting

SACRE

Report to 
SACRE

Report to 
SACRE

Report to 
SACRE

Report to 
SACRE

Report to 
SACRE

Report to SACRE

Report to SACRE

Report to SACRE

Pan-Berkshire Hub Contribute to the Pan-
Berkshire SACRE Hub. (£900?)

Ongoing if agreed 
by SACRE

SACRE members 
SACRE adviser 6 Chair 
from all Berkshire 
SACREs

Report to 
SACRE

Report to 
SACRE

Report to SACRE

P
age 12



Proposed SACRE Budget 2020-21
 
Item Provider Service Provided Cost (£)
 1 Wokingham Council Contribution to SACRE

Pan-Berkshire Hub
  900 

 2 Yattendon Primary 
School

LA Adviser (Rachel Manley)   650 

 3 David Rees Consultancy at 3 SACRE meetings 
@ £500 each

1500

 4 David Rees 3 Primary Network Meetings 
@ £300 each

  900

 5 David Rees 2 Secondary Network Meeting
@ £300 each

  600

 6 David Rees Travel Expenses   150

 7 NASACRE NASACRE Membership fee   105

 8 W Berks Council Consumables, printing etc     35  

TOTAL  4840
(= 2019-
20 figure)

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	8 2020-21 Action Plan and Budget - David Rees
	SACRE 25.02.2020 West Berks Action Plan 2020-21
	SACRE 25.02.2020 Agenda Item 8. Budget 2020-21


